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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

 
 
JASON PIERRE-PAUL, 
 
     Plaintiff, 
 
vs. 
 
ESPN, INC., a foreign corporation;  
and ADAM SCHEFTER, an individual, 
 
    Defendants. 
____________________________________/ 

Case No.:  
 

DEFENDANT ESPN, INC.’S NOTICE OF REMOVAL 
 
Defendant, ESPN, INC. (“ESPN”) submits this Notice of Removal under 28 U.S.C. § 

1446 because the plaintiff and defendants are completely diverse and the damages sought 

exceed $75,000.00.  In support, ESPN states: 

1. 28 U.S.C. § 1441(a) provides in relevant part that any action over which this 

Court has original jurisdiction may be removed by the defendant to the appropriate district 

court of the United States. 

2. 28 U.S.C. § 1332(a)(1) provides in relevant part that district courts shall have 

original jurisdiction where the amount in controversy exceeds $75,000, exclusive of interest 

and costs and is between citizens of different states.   Section 1332(c)(1) further provides that 

a corporation shall be deemed a citizen of any state by which it is incorporated and the state 

where it has its principal place of business. 

 3. Plaintiff, JASON PIERRE-PAUL (“Plaintiff”), instituted this action in the 

Eleventh Judicial Circuit Court in and for Miami-Dade County, Florida on February 24, 
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2016, asserting a cause of action for violation of Fla. Stat. 456.057 for an internet posting on 

Twitter containing a photograph of Plaintiff’s hand. 

4.    Attached as composite Exhibit A are true and correct copies of the summons, 

complaint and the other state court documents received by Defendant.  Defendant ESPN was 

served with the summons and complaint on March 2, 2016.  Defendant Schefter has not yet 

been served.  Removal is therefore timely pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1446(b). 

5. This court has jurisdiction over this matter under 28 U.S.C. § 1332 because 

diversity of citizenship exists between the parties and the amount in controversy exceeds the 

sum or value of $75,000.00, exclusive of interest and costs. 

6. Plaintiff alleges that he is, and was at the institution of this civil action, a 

resident of Miami-Dade County, Florida.  See Plaintiff’s Compl. at ¶ 2. It is well settled that 

for diversity purposes, a person is considered a citizen of the state where that person is 

domiciled. See McCormick v. Aderholt, 293 F.3d 1254, 1257 (11th Cir. 2002); Lazo v. U.S. 

Airways, Inc., Case No. 08-80391-CIV, 2008 WL 3926430 (S.D. Fla. Aug. 21, 2008). 

7. Defendant ESPN is, and was at the time of the institution of this civil action, a 

corporation organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Delaware 

with its principal place of business in the State of Connecticut.  Plaintiff’s Compl. at ¶ 3.  

ESPN is therefore a citizen of Connecticut, and/or Delaware, for purposes of diversity 

jurisdiction. 

8. Defendant Adam Schefter is, and was at the time of the institution of this civil 

action, a resident of and is domiciled in the state of New York.  Mr. Schefter is therefore a 

citizen of New York for purposes of diversity jurisdiction.   
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9. Thus, diversity of citizenship exists between the parties.  See Kong v. Allied 

Professional Ins. Co., 750 F.3d 1295 (11th Cir. 2014); Drew v. Safeco Ins. Co. of Ill., 578 

Fed.Appx. 954 (11th Cir. 2014).  

10. Regarding damages, Plaintiff’s Complaint alleged only that this matter 

exceeds the state circuit court’s minimum jurisdictional amount of $15,000.00.   However, a 

Plaintiff “cannot avoid removal by declining to allege the jurisdictional amount.”  Angrignon 

v. KLI, Inc., Case No. 08-81218-CIV,  2009 WL 506954, at * 3 (S.D. Fla. Feb 27, 2009). 

11.  Rather, where the complaint does not allege a specific amount of damages 

sought, the Notice of Removal must plausibly allege that the amount in controversy exceeds 

the jurisdictional threshold.  Dart Cherokee Basin Operating Co. v. Owens, 135 S. Ct. 547, 

554 (2014).  

12. Here, there is no dispute that the amount in controversy exceeds $75,000.  To 

clear up any potential ambiguity in the allegations of the Complaint, Mr. Siegel, one of 

Defendants’ counsel, called Mr. Lukacs, one of Plaintiff’s counsel, to inquire whether 

Plaintiff in fact seeks more than $75,000 in damages in this lawsuit.  On March 3, 2016, Mr. 

Schuster, Plaintiff’s co-counsel, returned the call.  Mr. Siegel explained that Defendants 

would remove this lawsuit to federal court if more than $75,000 in damages was being 

sought, and asked Mr. Schuster if that is the case.  Mr. Schuster replied, unequivocally, that 

Plaintiff is in fact seeking more than $75,000 in damages. 

13. On March 7, 2016, Mr. Siegel sent an e-mail to Plaintiff’s counsel confirming 

the conversation.  See Exhibit B. 
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14. Plaintiff’s counsel has never disavowed Mr. Schuster’s good-faith 

representation.  Subsequently, Mr. Schuster replied to Mr. Siegel’s e-mail, “I need to confer 

with my colleagues and client on this point and will get back to you shortly.”  See Exhibit C.  

However, notwithstanding further inquiries, no further response on this point has been 

forthcoming, nor has any of Plaintiff’s counsel ever suggested that Mr. Schuster’s 

representation was erroneous.  Indeed, Plaintiff is a national sports celebrity who recently 

signed a one-year contract with the New York Giants for $10.5 million, has retained two law 

firms to litigate this case, and is suing the world’s largest sports-related television network 

for compensatory and punitive damages over a news report on Twitter that the Complaint 

alleges was distributed to 4 million people and subsequently became a national story.  His 

counsel’s representation that he is in fact seeking more than $75,000 in damages comports 

with common sense. 

15. Based on the foregoing, Plaintiff seeks more than $75,000 in damages, 

exclusive of interests and costs.    

16. This case is being removed to the United States District Court for the 

Southern District of Florida because this district encompasses the state court from which this 

case is being removed, that being the Eleventh Judicial Circuit Court in and for Miami-Dade 

County, Florida.  See 28 U.S.C. § 89(b). 

17. Written notice of the filing of this Notice of Removal will be provided to 

plaintiff pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1446(d).  A copy of the Notice of Filing Notice of Removal 

is attached as Exhibit D.  A duplicate copy of this Notice of Removal will be filed with the 

Clerk of the Miami-Dade County Circuit Court, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1446(d). 
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 WHEREFORE, the Defendants, desiring to remove this case to the United States 

District Court for the Southern District of Florida, requests that the filing of this Notice of 

Removal with this Court and the filing the Notice of Removal with the Clerk of the Eleventh 

Judicial Circuit Court in and for Miami-Dade County, Florida shall effect the removal of this 

case. 

THOMAS & LoCICERO PL 
      Attorneys for Defendants 
      401 SE 12th Street, Suite 300 
      Fort Lauderdale, FL  33316   

Phone:  (954) 703-3416 
Fax:  (954) 400-5415 

 
    

By:  /s/Deanna K. Shullman   
 Deanna K. Shullman 

 Florida Bar No. 514462 
 Allison S. Lovelady 
 Florida Bar No. 70662  
 
       and  
 

Nathan Siegel 
(pro hac vice forthcoming) 
Adam Lazier 
(pro hac vice forthcoming) 
Levine Sullivan Koch & Schulz LLP 
1899 L Street, NW 
Suite 200 
Washington, DC 20036 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing has been 

furnished via email to those on the attached service list on this 31st  day of March, 2016. 

    By:  /s/Deanna K. Shullman____ 
    Attorney
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SERVICE LIST 

Jason Pierre-Paul v. ESPN et al 
 

John C. Lukacs, Sr., Esq. 
jlukacs@hinshawlaw.com 
Hinshaw & Culbertson LLP 
2525 Ponce de Leon Blvd 
4th Floor 
Coral Gables, Florida 33134 
Telephone: 305-358-7747 
Facsimile: 305-577-1063 
 
Mitchell Schuster, Esq. 
ms@msf-law.com 
Kevin Fritz, Esq. 
kaf@msf-law.com 
Meister Seelig & Fein LLP 
125 Park Avenue, 7th Floor 
New York, NY 10017 
Telephone: 212-655-3570 
Facsimile:  212-655-3535 
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE ELEVENTH JUDICIAL 
CIRCUIT IN AND FOR MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORJDA 

JASON PIERRE-PAUL, an individual, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

ESPN, INC., a foreign corporation; and 
ADAM SCHEFfER, an individual; 

Defendants. 
__________________________ ! 

CIVlL DIVISION 

CASE NO. 2016-004540-CA-01 

SUMMONS 
TO THE STATE OF FLORIDA 
To Each Sheriff of the State: 

DATE: "3 h Ito 
TIME: ~J0D~ 
SERVERINTL$: 

YOU ARE COMMANDED to serve this Summons and a copy of the Complaint, in this 
lawsuit on Defendant: 

ESPN, Inc. 
By serving Agent: ESPN Enterprises, Tnc. 

ESPNPlaza 
Ann: Legal Dept. 
Bristol. CT 060 I 0 

Each Defendant is required to serve written defenses to the Complaint on Plaintiff's 
attorney, to wit: 

1519193lvl A4339 

John C. Lukacs, Esquire 
Hinshaw & Culbertson LLP 

2525 Ponce de T .eon Boulevard, 4'" Floor 
Miami, Florida 33 134 

Telephone: (305) 358-7747 
Facsimile: (305) 577-1063 
jlukacs@hinshaw law. com 

15191937•1 A4J39 
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within 20 days after service of this summons on that Defendant, exclusive of the day of 
service, and to file the original of the defenses with the Clerk of this Court either before 
service on Plaintiff's attomcy or immediately thereafter. If a Defendant fails to do so, a 
default will be entered against that Defendant for the relief demanded in the Complaint or 
Petition. 

DATED: February 25, 2016. 

HARVEY RUVIN 
Clerk ofthe Comt 'MAR 0 2 2016 

'lin:;l'TOR Pll?O 
By: ~ 

--------~----~~----------
As Deputy Clerk 

IF YOU ARE A PERSON WITH A DISABILITY WHO NEEOS ANY ACCOMMODATION TO PARTICIPATE IN 
THIS PROCEEDING, YOU ARE ENTITLED, AT NO COST TO YOU, TO '!"HE PROVISION OF CERTAIN 
ASSISTANCE. PLEASE CONTACT THE MIAMI-DADE COUNTY COURT'S ADA COORDINATOR AT LAWSON 
E. THOMAS COURTHOUSE CENTER. 175 N.W. 1ST AVE., SUITE 2702, MIAMI, FL 33128, TELEPHONE 
NUMBERS (305) 349-7175 FOR VOJCE OR {305) 349-7174 FOR TOO AND 349-7355 FOR FAX, WITHIN TWO 
WORKING DAYS OF YOUR RECEIPT OF THIS DOCUMENT. IF YOU ARE HEARING OR VOICE IMPAIRED, 
PLEASE CALL 711 FOR THE FLORIDA RELAY SERVICE. 

2 

15 19193Jvl A4339 
15191937v l A4339 
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Filing# 38231272 E-Filed 02/24/2016 03:51 :07 PM 

FORM 1.997. CIVIL COVER SHEET 

The civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor supplement the filing and service of 
pleadings or other papers as required by law. This form shall be filed by the plaintiff or petitioner for the use of the Clerk 
of the Court for the purpose of reporting judicial workload data pursuant to Florida Statutes section 25.075. 

I. CASE STYLE 
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE ELEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, 
IN AND FOR MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA 

Jason Pierre-Paul 
Plaintiff 

vs. 

ESPN, Inc., Adam Scheftcr 
Defendant 

II. TYPE OF CASE 

0 Condominium 
Q Contracts and indebtedness 
Q Eminent domain 
.[J Auto negligence 
0 Negligence - other 

0 Business governance 
0 Business torts 
g EnvlronmentalfToxic tort 
Q Th1rd party indemnification 
Q Construction defect 
0 Mass tort 
Q Negli9ent security 
Q Nursing home negligence 
Q Premises liability- commercial 
0 Premises liability- residential 

LJ Products l iability 
!J Real Property/Mortgage foreclosure 

Q Commercial foreclosure SO- $50,000 
Q Commercial foreclosure $50,001 - $249,999 
:J Commercial foreclosure $250,000 or more 

Q Homestead residential foreclosure $0- 50.000 
0 Homestead residential foreclosure $50,001 -

$249,999 
0 Homestead residenti:Ji foreclosure $250,000 or 

more 
Q Non-homestead residential foreclosure $0 -

$50.000 
g Non-homestead resident ial fo reclosure 

$50,001 - $249,999 
0 Non-homestead residential foreclosure 

$250.00 or more 

Case No.: _______ _ 
Judge: _______ _ 

Q Other real property actions $0 - $50,000 
0 Other real property actions $50,001 - $249,999 
0 Other real property actions $250,000 or more 

Q Professional malpractice 
0 Malpractice- business 
0 Malpractice - medical 
0 Malpractice- other professional 

Other 
0 
0 
.Q 
0 

g 
Q 
0 
0 
0 

AntitrusUTrade Regulation 
Business Transaction 
Circuit Civil - Not Applicable 
Constitutional challenge-statute or 
ordinance 
Constitutional challenge-proposed 
amendment 
Corporate Trusts 
Discrimination-employment or other 
Insurance claims 
Intellectual property 
LibeVSiander 

0 Shareholder derivative action 
0 Securities litigation 
0 Trade secrets 
U Trust litigation 
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COMPLEX BUSINESS COURT 

This action is appropriate for assignment to Complex Business Court as delineated and mandated by the 
Administrative Order. Yes 0 No~ 

Ill. REMEDIES SOUGHT (check all that apply): 
® Monetary; 
g Non-monetary 

0 Non-monetary declaratory or injunctive relief; 
0 Punitive 

IV. NUMBER OF CAUSES OF ACTION; ( 
(Specify) 

V. IS THIS CASE A CLASS ACTION LAWSUIT? 

.IJ Yes 

~ No 

VI. HAS NOTICE OF ANY KNOWN RELATED CASE BEEN FILED? 
1Z1 No 

0 Yes -If "yes" list all related cases by name, case number and court: 

VII. IS JURY TRIAL DEMANDED IN COMPLAINT? 
181 Yes 

.IJ No 

I CERTIFY that the information I have provided in this cover sheet is accurate to the best of my knowledge and belief. 

Signature sf John C. Lukacs Sr. FL Bar No.: 362727 
Altomey or party (Bar number, if attorney) 

John C. Lukacs Sr. 02/24/2016 
(Type or print name) Date 
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Filing# 38231272 E-Filed 02/24/20 16 03:51 :07 PM 

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE ELEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT 
IN AND FOR MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA 

CIVIL DIVISION 

JASON PIERRE-PAUL, an individual, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

ESPN, INC., a foreign 
corporation; and ADAM SCHEFTER, 
an individual; 

Defendants. 

Case No: 

________________________________________ ! 

COMPLAINT 

Plaintiff, JASON PIERRE-PAUL, an individual ("Plaintiff'), by and through 

undersigned counsel, hereby sues defendants ESPN, Inc., a foreign corporation 

("ESPN"); and ADAM SCHEFTER, an individual ("Schcfter" and collectively with the 

Trust and ESPN, "Defendant:;"); to recover damages for violation of Florida Statute § 

456.057 and invasion of privacy. In support thereof, Plaintiff states as follows: 

1. This action arises out of ESPN reporter Schefter's blatant disregard tor the 

private and confidential nature of Plaintifrs medical records, all so Schefter could show 

the world that he had "suppo1ting proof' of a surgical procedure. Schefter improperly 

obtained Plaintiffs medical records from a hospilal and then, out of a selfish desire to 

"break news," electronically blasted the records to his approximately 4 million Twitter 

followers and made it available to anyone worldwide with Internet access. After facing a 

[6922-3/490 1384/1] 
IS19 1493v l A4339 
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firesto1m of public backlash for his intentional invasion of Plaintifrs privacy, Schefter 

then admitted to Sports Illustrated that he "could have and should have done even more" 

to protect Plaintifrs pdvate medical records, and that the only reason why he publicized 

them was out of fear that his report of the surgery would be "questioned." Stated 

differently, to prove the accuracy of his report that a surgery occurred, which surgery 

would not and could not be denied, Schefter made Plaintiff's medical records available to 

the world. 

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS 
PARTIES 

2. Plaintiff is an individual domiciled in Miami, FL and is sui juris. At all 

times material hereto, Plaintiff was a professional football player for the New York 

Giants of the National Football League (the "NFL"). 

3. ESPN is a foreign corporation whose principal address and place of 

business is ESPN Plaza, Bristol, CT 060 I 0. At all material times hereto, ESPN 

conducted continuous and systematic business in the State ofFlorida. 

4. ESPN's website touts itself as "The Worldwide Leader in Sports" and "the 

leading multinational, multimedia sports entertainment company featuring the broadest 

portfolio of multimedia sports assets with over 50 business entities." 

5. Schefter is an individual and is sui juris. At aiJ times material hereto, 

Schefter was an employee or agent of ESPN, and regularly appeared as a reporter/analyst 

on a variety of ESPN's television programs, including NFL Insiders, NFL Live, Sunday 
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NFL Countdown, Monday Night Countdown> and SportsCenter. At all material times 

hereto, Schefter conducted continuous and systematic business in the State of Florida. 

6. ESPN's website claims that Schefter is "one of the top reporters in the 

industry, especially when it comes to breaking news" and that "Schefter was named 'the 

most influential New Yorker on Twitter,' according to date from social media company 

Peerlndex." 

7. In addition to those persons and entities set fot1h as Defendants herein, 

there are likely other parties who may well be liable to Plaintiff, but respecting whom 

Plaintiff currently lacks specific facts to permit him to name such persons as parties 

defendant. By not naming such persons or entities at this time, Plaintiff is not waiving 

his right to amend this pleading to add such parties> should the facts warrant adding such 

patties. 

JURISDICTION AND VILNUE 

8. This is an action for damages in exc~ss of Fifteen Thousand Dollars 

($15,000.00), exclusive of interest, costs, and attorneys' fees; and in all respects meets or 

exceeds the jurisdictional requirements of this Court pursuant to Florida Statute § 26.012. 

9. This Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendants because: (a) 

Defendants are operating, present, and/or doing business within this jurisdiction and/or 

(b) Defendants' breaches and tortious activity occurred within this jurisdiction. 

J 0. Venue of this action is proper in this Court pursuant to Florida Statutes §§ 

47.011, et seq., as the causes of action alleged herein arose in Miami-Dade County, FL. 

11. All conditions precedent to bringing this action have been satisfied. 
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F ACTCAL ALLEGATIONS APPLICAllLE TO ALL COUNTS 

12. On July 4, 2015, Plaintiff sustained a serious hand injury in a !}reworks 

accident. 

13. Thereafter, Plaintiff was admitted to Jackson Memorial Hospital in Miami, 

FL (the "Hospital") for treatment of his injuries. 

14. Non-party Public Health Trust of Miami-Dade County is a quasi-

governmental agency established by the Board of County Commissioners ofMiami-Dade 

County and under the authority of Florida Statutes, Sections 154.07 through 154.12, for 

the purpose of exercising supervisory control over the operation, maintenance and 

governance of the Jackson Health System, which includes, among other hospitals, the 

Hospital. 

15. 1be Hospital created, maintained and stored Plaintiffs medical records, 

which contained his treatment and diagnosis, and which are private and confidential. 

16. The Hospital disclosed Plaintiff's medical records, including a 

photograph/image of a chart renecting the amputation of Plaintiff's right index finger (the 

"Charf'), to Schefter and possibly other third paities, without Plaintiff's written 

authorization. 

17. On July 8, 2015, Schefter then distributed the Chart to his 3.86 million 

Twitter followers, which Tweet is now available to anyone with access to the Internet 

(the "Twitter Message"). 1 

1 According to its website, Twitter "is u service for friends, family, and coworkers to communicate and stay 
connected through the C)(Change of quick, frequent messages. People post Tweets. which may contain photos, 
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18. In the Twitter Message, and above the Chart, Schefter wrote: "ESPN 

obtained medical charts that show Giants DE Jason Pierr~-Paul had right index finger 

amputated today." 

19. In a subsequent interview with Sports Illustrated, ScheCter admitted " ... in 

hindsight, I could have and should have done even more here due to the sensitivity of the 

situation." 

20. In that same interview, Schefter acknowledged the difference between (a) 

reporting on Plaintiff's smgery and (b) disclosing Plaintiffs medical records: "NFL 

reporters report on all kinds of medical information on a daily basis. That's part of the 

job. The only difference here was that there was a photo." 

2l. In that same interview, Schefter admitted that he disclosed Plaintiff's 

medical records merely because he was concerned that people would doubt the accuracy 

of his report that the surgery had occurred: "[I]n a day and age in which pictures and 

videos tell stories and confirm facts , in which sources and their motives are routinely 

questioned, and in which reporters strive to be as accurate as possible, this was the 

ultimate supporting proof" 

videos, links and up to 140 characters of text. These messages are posted 10 your profile, sent to your followers, and 
are searchable on Twitter search." 

A "Tweet" is "any message posted 10 Twitter which may contain photos, videos, links and up to 140 characters of 
text." 

Twilter's website explains thnt "following" someone "means you'w chosen to subscribe to their Twitter updah:s. 
When you fo llow someone, every time they post a new message, it will appear on your Twitter home page." "Your 
followers read your Tweets. II' your Tweets arc public, 1:1nyone who runs a search for a keyword in your Tweet may 
be able to see that message. Your Tweels are public by deli'llllt .... " 
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COUNT I 
(Violation of Fla. Stat. 456.057 Against Schefter) 

22. Plaintiff re-allegcs, and adopts by reference herein, paragraphs 1 - 20 

above, and further alleges: 

23. Florida Statute § 456.057 creates a broad doctor-patient privilege of 

confidentiality. 

24. The Hospital is a "records owner" as that term is defined by Florida Statute 

§ 456.057(1). 

25. The Chart, and the other reports and records of the Hospital 's examination 

and treatment of Plaintiff, are protected from disclosure by Florida Statute§ 456.057. 

26. Florida Statute § 456.057(7)(a) provides that "such records may not be 

furnished to, and the medical condition of a patient may not be discussed with, any 

person other than the patient, the patient's legal representative, or other health care 

practitioners and providers involved in the patient's care or treatment, except upon 

written authorization from the patient." 

27. The Hospital's disclosure of Plaintiff's medical records without his written 

authorization constitutes a violation of Florida Statute§ 456.057. 

28. Florida Statute§ 456.057(11) states: 

Records owners are responsible for maintaining a record of all disclosures 
of infmmation contained in the medical record to a third party, including 
the purpose of the disclosure reque::;t. The record of disclosure may be 
maintained in the medical record. The third party lo whom information is 
disclosed is prohibited from further disclosing any information in the 
medical record without the expressed written consent of the patient or the 
patient's legal representative. (Emphasis added). 
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29. Because the Hospital disclosed the Chart to Schefter, he was prohibited 

from further disclosing it or any infom1ation therein without the expressed written 

consent of Plaintiff or Plaintiff s legaJ representative, which consent was never sought or 

obtained. 

30. Schefter's disclosure of the Chart constitutes a violation of Florida Statute§ 

456.057. 

31. As a result of the violation of the statute, Plaintiff has suffered damages. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, JASON PIERRE-PAUL, an individual demands 

judgment against defendant ADAM SCHEFTER, an individual, for an amount within the 

jurisdictional limits of this coUit, including an award of interests and costs. Plaintiff 

reserves the right to seek leave of court to assess punitive damages against the Trust and 

Schefter. 

COlJNT II 
(Invasion of Privacy Against Schefter) 

32. Plaintiff re-alleges, and adopts by reference herein, paragraphs I - 30 

above, and further alleges: 

33. Schefter disclosed the private Chart to the public by posting it on his 

Twitter account, which is publicly accessible by anyone who can connect to the Jnternet. 

34. The Chart was private and not generally known. 

35. The publication of the Chart was highly offensive to a reasonable person of 

ordinary sensibilities. 
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36. The Chart, as distinguished from the amputation of Plainti1Ts right index 

finger, was not a matter of legitimate public concern. 

37. Stated differently, while the amputation may have been of legitimate public 

concern, the Chart itself was not. 

38. As a result of the invasion of privacy, Plaintiffhas suffered damages. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, JASON PIERRE-PAUL, an individual, demands 

judgment against defendant ADAM SCHEFTER, an individual, for an amount within the 

jurisdictional limits of this court, including an award of interests and costs. Plaintiff 

reserves the right to seek leave of court to assess punitive damages against Schefter. 

COUNTID 
(Respondeat Superior Against ESPN) 

39. Plaintiff re-alleges, and adopts by reference herein, paragraphs 1 - 37 

above, and further alleges: 

40. Schefter was an agent or employee of ESPN and was acting within the 

scope of such agency or employment when he improperly disclosed the Chart to his 

millions of Twitter follows and anyone else with access to the Internet. 

4 1. Schefler's publication of the Chart was done with the purpose of benefiting 

ESPN's interests. 

42. Being the first to report informati on pe11aining to the NFL or its players is 

Schefter's primary role for ESPN. 

43. ESPN benefitted from Schefter's violation of Florida Statute§ 456.057 and 

invasion of privacy because being the first to report information pertaining to the NfL or 
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its players attracts viewers, which increases BSPN's ratings, which results in more 

advettising revenue for ESPN. 

44. ESPN is liable for Schefter's violation of Florida Statute § 456.057 and 

invasion of privacy committed in the course and scope of his agency or employment 

under the doctrine of respondeat superior. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, JASON PIERRE-PAUL, an individual, demands 

judgment against defendant ESPN, a foreign corporation, for an amount within the 

jurisdictional limits of this court, including an award of interests and costs. Plaintiff 

reserves the right to seek leave of court to assess punitive damages against ESPN. 

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

Plaintiff demands trial by jury in this action of all issues so triable. 

RESERVATION OF RIGHTS 

Plaintiff reserves the right to further amend this Complaint, upon completion of 

his investigation and discovery, to assert any additional claims for relief against 

Defendants or other patties as may be warranted under the circumstances and as allowed 

bylaw. 
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Dated: February 24, 2016. 

Respectfully submitted, 

MEISTER SEELIG & FEIN LLP2 

Mitchell Schuster, Esq. 
ms@msf-law.com 
Kevin Fritz, Esq. 
kaf@msf-law.corn 
125 Park Avenue, 7°1 Floor 
New York, NY 10017 
Telephone: (212) 655-3570 
Facsimile: (212) 655-3535 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 

and 

HINSHAW & CULBERTSON LLP 

By: s/John C. Lukacs Sr. 
John C. Lukacs, Sr., Esquire 
jl ukacs@hinshawlaw .com 
FNB: 362727 
2525 Ponce de Leon Boulevard 
41h Floor 
Coral Gables, Florida 33134 
Telephone: (305) 358-7747 
Facsimile: (305) 577-1063 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 

2 Pursuant to Rule 2.51 0, Fla. R. Jud. Admin., a Verified Motion to Appear Pro Hac Vice has been filed 
contemporaneously herewith. 
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Filing# 38231272 E-Filed 02/24/2016 03:51:07 PM 

IN TEIE CIRCUIT COUIRT OF Tl!IE 
11TH JUDIC!AIL C!RCUll'f, nN AND 
FOR MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, 
FLORIDA 

Case No. 

JASON PIERRE-PAUL, an individual, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

ESPN, INC., a foreign 
corporation; and ADAM SCHEFTER, 
an individual; 

Defendants. 

----------------------------------------~/ 

VERJllFIED MOTION OF MITCHELL SCHUSTER FOR ADMISSION TO APPEAR PRO 
HAC VICE PURSUANT TO J!t'LORIDA RULE OF JUDICIAL ADMINISTRAT:D.ON 2.Sl0 

Movant, Mitchell Schuster, of the fitm Meister Seelig & Fein LLP moves for special 

admission to appear in this case for plaintiff Jason Pierre-Paul, and states as follows: 

1. Movant resides in New York and is not a resident of the State of Florida. 

2. Movant is an attomey and a member of the law finn of Meister Seelig & Fein 

LLP, 125 Park Avenue, 7'" floor, New York, NY 10017, telephone212-655-3500. 

3. Movant has been retained as a member of the above named law finn by Pl aintiff 

to provide legal representation in corutection with the above-styl ed manner now pending before 

the above-named court of the State of Florida. 

4. Movant is an active member in good standing and cutTently eligible to practice 
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law in the following jurisdictions: 

JURISDICTION 

New York State Courts 

BAR NUMBER/YEAR 

2300648/1990 

5. There have been no discipli11ary, suspension, disbarment, or contempt 

proceedings initiated again~'t Movant in the preceding five (5) years, except as provided below 

(give jurisdiction of proceeding, date upon which proceeding was initiated, nature of alleged 

violation, statement of whether the proceeding has concluded or is stil pending, and sanctions, if 

any, imposed). None. 

6. Movant, either by resignation, withdrawal, or otherwise, never has terminated or 

attempted to tenninate Movant's office as an attorney in order lo avoid administrative, 

disciplinary, disbannent, or suspension proceedings. 

7. Movant is not an inactive member of The Florida Bar. 

8. Movant is not now a member of The Florida Bar. 

9. Movant is not a suspended member of The Florida Bar. 

I 0. Movant is not a disbarred member of The Florida Bar nor has Movant received a 

disciplinary resignation from The Florida Bar. 

1 J. Movant has not previously been disciplined or held in contempt by reason of 

misconduct committed while engaged in representation pursuant to Florida Rule of Judicial 

Administration 2.51 0, except as provided below (give date of disciplinary action or contempt, 

reasons therefor, and court imposing contempt): None. 
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12. Movant has filed motion(s) to appear as counsel ill Florida state courts during the 

last five (5) years in the following matters: Collazo v. Rodriguez et al., Case No. 2015-13387 

CA (23). 

13. Local counsel of record associated with Movant in this matter is John C. Lukacs, 

Sr., who is an active member in good standing of The Florida Bar and has offices at Hinshaw & 

Culbertson LLP, located at 2525 Ponce de Leon Boulevard, 4'h Floor, Coral Gables, FL 33134, 

(305) 358-7747. 

14. Movant has read the applicable provisions of Florida Rule of Judicial 

Administration 2.510 and Rule l-3 .l0 of the Rules Regulating The Florida Bar and certifies that 

this verified motion complies with those rules. 

15. Movant agrees to comply with the provisions of the Florida Rules of Professional 

Conduct and consents to the jurisdiction of the courts and the Bar of the State ofFlorida. 

WHEREFORE, Movant respectfully requests permission to appear in this court for this 

cause only. 

STATE OF NEW YORK 

COUNTY OF NEW YORK 

I, Mitchell Schuster, do hereby swear or affirm under penalty of perjury that Jam the 

Movant in the above-styled matter; that I have read the foregoing Motion and know the contents 

thereof, and the contents are true of my own knowledge and belief. .,. 

//;~ / .. (,///r 
/ -/ti.Z:J : /It'!/_ --

MITCHELL SCH STER 
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CONSffi:NT OIF LOCAJL COI!JNSJE1L OF RF.COJRI) 
1 hereby consent to be associated as local counsel of record in this cause pursuant to 

Florida Rule of Judicial Administration 2.510. 

Dated: February 24, 2016. 

.HINSHAW & CULBERTSON LLP 

By: s!John C. Lukacs, Sr. 
John C. Lukacs, Sr., Esquire 
jlukncs@hinshawlaw.com 
FNB: 362727 
2525 Ponce de Leon Boulevard 
4111 Floor 
Coral Gables, Florida 33134 
Telephone: (305) 358-7747 
Facsimile: (305) 577-1063 
Attomeys for Plaintiff 

CElRTIFiCA1'E OJF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing motion was served by 

U.S. Mail to PHV Admissions, The Florida Bar, 65 I East Jefferson Street, Tallahassee, florida 

32399-2333 accompanied by payment of the $250.00 filing fee made payable to The Florida Bar 

and has been served by electronic transmission through the Court's E-Filing portal upon all 

pat1ies on the attached Service List, on this 241
!1 day of February, 2016. 

Is/ John C. Lukacs. Sr. 
Jolm C. Lukacs, Sr. 
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ESPN, Inc. 
ESPN Plaza 
Bristol, CT 06010 
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SERVliCE LIST 

5 

Adam Schefter 
c/o ESPN, Inc. 
ESPN Plaza 
Bristol, CT 06010 
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Filing# 38231272 E-Filed 02/24/2016 03:51:07 PM 

IN THE CffiCUnT COURT OF THE 
H TH .rom.cnAL CIRCUDT, RN AND 
FOR MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, 
FLOHUDA 

Case No. 

JASON PIERRE-PAUL, an individual, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

ESPN, INC., a foreign 
corporation; and ADAM SCHEFTER, 
an individual; 

Defendants. ________________________________________ / 

VER.nFHED MOTION OJF KEVUN lF'DU'fZ FOR ADMISSION 'lf'O API?EAR PRO ll:llAC 
VHCE rURSI!.JANT TO lli'JLORIUA RULE OF .JUDDCIAL ADMJNISTRATION 2.510 

Movant, Kevin Fritz, of the finn Meister Seelig & Fein LLP moves for special admission 

to appear in this case for plaintiff Jason Pierre-Paul, and states as follows: 

I. Movant resides in New York and is not a resident of the Stnte of Florida. 

2. Movant is an attomey and a member of the law finn of Meister Seelig & Fein 

LLP, 125 Park Avenue, i" floor, New York, NY 10017, telephone212-655-3500. 

3. Movant has been retained as a member of the above named law finn by Plaintiff 

to provide legal representation in connection with the above-styled manner now pending before 

the above-named court of the State of Floiida. 

4. Movant is an active member in good standing and cun·ently eligible to practice 
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law in the followingjurisdictions: 

JURISDICTION 

New York State Courts 

BAR NUMBER/YEAR 

4098190/2003 

5. There have been no disciplinary, suspension, disbarment, or contempt 

proceedings initiated against Movant in the preceding five (5) years, except as provided below 

(give jurisdiction of proceeding, date upon which proceeding was initiated, nature of alleged 

violation, statement of whether the proceeding has concluded or is stil pending, and sanctions, if 

any, imposed). None. 

6. Movant, either by resignation, withdrawal, or otherwise, never has tetminated or 

attempted to terminate Movant's office as an attorney in order to avoid administrative, 

disciplinary, disbannent, or suspension proceedings. 

7. Movant is not an inactive member of The Florida Bar. 

8. Movant is not now a member of The Florida Bar. 

9. Movant is not a suspended member ofThe Florida Bar. 

10. Movant is not a disban-ed member of The Florida Bar nor has Movant received a 

disciplinary resignation from The Florida Bar. 

ll . Movant has not previously been disciplined or held in contempt by reason of 

misconduct committed while engaged in representation pursuant to Flotida Rule of Judicial 

Administration 2.5 10, except as provided below (give date of disciplinary action or contempt, 

reasons therefor, and court imposing contempt): None. 

( 6922-3/4902344/ 1} 2 

Case 1:16-cv-21156-MGC   Document 1-1   Entered on FLSD Docket 03/31/2016   Page 22 of 25



12. Movant has filed motion(s) to appear as counsel in Florida state courts during the 

last five (5) years in the following matters: CoJlazo v. Rodriguez et al., Case No. 2015-13387 

CA (23). 

13. Local counsel of record associated with Movant in this matter is John C. Lukacs, 

Sr., who is an active member in good standing of The Florida Bar and has offices at Hinshaw & 

Culbertson LLP, located at 2525 Ponce de Leon Boulevard, 4'h Floor, Coral Gables, FL 33134, 

(305) 358-7747. 

14. Movant has read the applicable provisions of Florida Rule of Judicia] 

Administration 2.510 and Rule 1-3.10 of the Rules Rcgulatjng The Florida Bar and certifies that 

this verified motion complies with those mles. 

15. Movant agrees to comply with the provisions of the Florida Rules of Professional 

Conduct and consents to the jurisdiction of the courts and the Bar of the State of Florida. 

WHEREFORE, Movant respectfully requests pennission to appear in this court for this 

cause only. 

STATE OF NEW YORK 

COUNTY OF NEW YORK 

1, Kevin Fritz, do hereby swear or affim1 under penalty of perjury tl1at I am the Movant in 

the above-styled matter; that I have read the foregoing Motion and know the contents thereof, 

and the contents are true of my own knowledge arl beli.ef. ·--::: / 

~· ... ;r~ 
KE\YTN foR t. /./' 

.. ~/ 
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CONSENT OF JLOCAH, COUNSEL OlF RlECORD 
I hereby consent to be associated os local counsel of record in this cause pursuant to 

Florida Rule ofJudicial Administration 2.5 10. 

Dated: February 24, 2016. 

HlNSJIIAW & CULBERTSON LLP 

By: s!John C. Lukacs. Sr. 
John C. Lukacs, Sr., Esquire 
jlukacs@hinshawlaw .com 
FNB: 362727 
2525 Ponce de Leon Boulevard 
4th Floor 
Coral Gables, Florida 33134 
Telephone: (305) 358-7747 
Facsimile: (305) 577-1063 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

l HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and cotTect copy of the foregoing motion was served by 

U.S. Mail to PHV Admissions, The Florida Bar, 651 East Jefferson Street, Tallahassee, Florida 

32399-2333 accompanied by payment of the $250.00 filing fee made payable to 'n1e Florida Bar 

and has been served by electronic transmission through the Court's E-Filing portal upon all 

parties on the attached Service List, on this 24th day of February, 2016. 

Is/ John C. Lukacs. Sr. 
Jolm C. Lukacs, Sr. 
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ESPN, Inc. 
ESPN Plaza 
Bristol, CT 0601 0 
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Adam Schefter 
c/o ESPN, lnc. 
ESPN Plaza 
Bristol, CT 0601 0 
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